ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 22, 2011
9:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Wel echowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senator Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Cathy G essel

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 93
"An Act relating to special request specialty organization
regi stration plates; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 2
"An Act relating to National Rifle Association special request
license plates.™

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 16
"An Act relating to special request choose life |license plates;
and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 93

SHORT TITLE: SPECI ALTY LI CENSE PLATES
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 21/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 11 (S) STA, TRA
02/ 22/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2011



BILL: SB 2
SHORT TITLE: LI CENSE PLATES: NATI ONAL RI FLE ASSN.
SPONSOR(s): MENARD, HUGG NS

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11
01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 22/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 16

SHORT TI TLE: SPECI AL REQUEST LI CENSE PLATES
SPONSOR(s): MEYER

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 22/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

KARLA HART, Staff to Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 93 for sponsor on behal f of the
sponsor.

VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned provi sions of SB 93.

SENATOR LI NDA MENARD, Sponsor of SB 2
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 2.

M CHAEL ROVITO, Staff to Senator Menard

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 2 for sponsor.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 16.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 22, 2011



VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned provi sions of SB 93.

SENATOR LI NDA MENARD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 2.

M CHAEL ROVI TO Staff

Senat or Menard

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 2 for sponsor.

NEI L MOSS, Al aska State Director

Schol astic C ay Target Program (SCTP)

Wasi |l la, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 2.

M CHELLE SYDEMAN, St aff

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 93 on behal f of the sponsor

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 16.

JEFF M TTMAN, Executive Director

American G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave ACLU position on |license plate bills.

RUSS AMERLI NG National Publicity Coordinator
Choose Life License Plates
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

JI' M M NNERY

Al aska Fam |y Counci

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2011



M KE PAULSEN, Chai rnman

Choose Life Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

KELLY FOREMAN

Choose Life Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

BOB HEAD, Director
American Fam |y Associ ation of Al aska

Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

SYD H EDERSDORF, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

CAREN ROBI NSON, Lobbyi st

Al aska Wnen's Lobby and Alaska Planned Parenthood of the
G eater Northwest

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 16.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:06: 42 AM

CHAIR BI LL WELECHOWNSKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:06 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators @ essel, Meyer, Paskvan, and Chair
W el echowski .

SB  93-SPECI ALTY LI CENSE PLATES

9: 09: 46 AM
CHAl R W ELECHOWSKI announced the first order of business to be
SB 93.

KARLA HART, staff to Senator Bill Welechowski, presented SB 93
for the sponsor. She said that specialty license plates are
sweeping the country. The 26th Alaska State Legislature had a
total of 15 commttee neetings entailing nine versions of bills
and requiring one concurrent resolution on |license plates. Each
license plate request takes legislative attention away from nore
pressing state matters and creates state costs of drafting,
duplicating, distributing, posting, scheduling and anending.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 22, 2011



Legislatively created fund raising plates require the D vision
of Mdtor Vehicles (DW) to track and request small amounts of
noney for reappropriation. Oher plates require the DW to check
a registrant's status. Two legislatively created |license plates
from 1998 have never been issued. The ease of production of
license plates has created interest in specialty plates.

SB 93 proposes an adm nistrative approach which frees up the
| egislature for nore pressing business, allows for uniform
objective standards to be set by regulation, saves nobney and
time, and creates a uniform specialty plate design which nakes
it easier for law enforcement to recognize plates. Legislators
could refer constituents to the adm nistrative program rather
t han addressing each request through a bill. SB 93 gives the DW
gui delines for developing the regulations for a specialty plate
program and |eaves it wup to them to set the specific
regul ati ons.

M5. HART explained that section 1 of SB 93 allows the DW to
develop and inplenent regulations to issue special request
plates to any Al aska organization with a 501(c)(3) tax exenpt
status. It also allows departnments and nunicipalities to issue
specialty plates. It directs the DW to design a standard plate
design for all specialty plates, which nmakes it easier for |aw
enforcenment to identify plates.

Each entity nust submt its application on a form provided by
the DW, pay a fee that is set by regulation, and then submt
registration fees for at least 50 notor vehicles before plates
will be issued. Al so, the organization requesting the plates may
not be offensive in purpose, nature, activity or nane. DW wl|
develop regulations around this statutory requirenment. The
organi zation requesting the plate may charge a fee in addition
to regular registration fees, and then submt the excess fees to
the DW. For instance, the request for NRA special request
pl ates has funds in excess which would be returned to a charity.
This bill allows the sponsoring organization to collect all fees
and then pay the $30 fee to DW and the organization may keep
the rest.

9:14: 19 AM

M5. HART further noted that each organization is free to devel op
its own policies and procedures for collecting fees. The
regul ations also specify that a m ni mrum nunber of registrations
or renewals of specialty plates nust be conducted. Section 2
sets the fee for specialty plates at $30 above regular |icensing
fees. The effective date would be January 1, 2012. DW says it

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2011



would not be a problem to inplement the regulations by that
dat e.

9:15: 53 AM

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOABKI, sponsor of SB 93, enphasized that he
did not intend to be critical of other l|icense plates bills.
This is nore of a streanmlining bill and can also satisfy the

needs of constituents. He asked if his staff knew how the system
is working in other states.

M5. HART answered yes. Pennsylvania is very happy wth its
program They started with a mninmm requirenent of 300 plates;
now the mni mum requirenent is one. The program has proven to be
cost effective and easy to admnister. They are open to sharing
their procedure with Al aska.

WH TNEY  BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Mot or Vehi cl es,
Department of Administration, said she was available for
guesti ons.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked for her thoughts on SB 93.

M5. BREWSTER answered that SB 93 would stream ine the process.
CHAI R W ELECHOWEKI noted there was a zero fiscal note.

M5. BREWSTER said she did not believe it would cost anyt hing.

9:19: 28 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked what she would consider to be a basis for
deni al .

M5. BREWSTER stated the DW has existing regulations regarding
personalized plates and their denial. She said that synbols or
letters in a conbination that denmeans an ethnic, religious, or
racial group, or is otherw se vulgar, indecent or offensive wll
be denied. In those instances when personalized plates fit that
description, they do recall the plate and give the individua
the ability to go through the admnistrative hearing process.
Organi zations could al so go through that process.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there would be the potential to stop a
nmessage if it was distasteful to the mpjority of people.

M5. BREWSTER replied if the nmessage was patently offensive to

the ordinary person the division could go through the process.
St andards woul d be set in regulation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN noted that what would be offensive to one nay be
a core message to anot her.

M5. BREWSTER answered she did not disagree. This is a difficult
topic. DW uses the standard, is it deneaning to a religious or
ethnic group or does it have sexual connotations.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how the state can expect to prevent people
from putting an offensive nessage on a license plate if it
doesn't have the ability to take a simlarly offensive bunper
sticker off a vehicle.

M5. BREWSTER said there is a process in place, and court cases
regarding license plates say it is a freedom of speech issue.

SENATOR MEYER asked if M. Brewster could assure him that she
would be at the DW for the next 100 or 200 years it would be
fine. The concern is what happens after she is gone. How do we
define offensive in purpose, nature, activity or nane. For this
to work there need to be tight regulations in place. He then
asked if she could explain the adm nistrative hearing process.

M5. BREWSTER said the DW has three admnistrative hearing
officers who hear a nunber of issues, from DU revocation to
personalized plate revocation. The DW has software that wll
weed out nany offensive plates. Sonetinmes conbinations slip
through the cracks. Wien notified of this by |aw enforcenent or
the public, the DW looks at the plate against current
regulations and if the plate violates regulations they wll
inform the person via certified nmail that they wll revoke the
license plate. They also give them information on requesting an
adm nistrative hearing, and inform them that they can change
their plate free of charge. If they do request a hearing, the
hearing officer looks at the case and mnekes a determ nation
based on regul ati ons and exi sting Al aska court cases.

SENATOR MEYER asked who pays for the adm nistrative hearing.

9:29:36 AM
M5. BREWSTER answered it falls under the operations of DW.

SENATOR MEYER asked if this would be an added cost to DW.

M5. BREWSTER responded she did not foresee a large increase in
heari ngs

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2011



SENATOR MEYER noted SB 93 says that before the plate will be
i ssued, there nust be at |east 50 vehicles, and asked how that
woul d wor K.

V. BREWSGTER said the fees wuld be collected by the
organi zation and submtted with the application.

SENATOR MEYER comrented that the way other states do this is
m xed, and he can see a lot of benefits to having the process
streani i ned.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked about court cases. Roughly half the
states have this process, so there may be a well-established
body of case | aw.

M5. BREWSTER answered that courts have consistently ruled if a
state allows specialty license plates, then it is a billboard
for that person or organization. There is a substantial body of
decisions to direct hearing officers.

9:33:39 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOABKI cl osed public testinony and announced that SB
93 would be held in commttee.

SB  2-LI CENSE PLATES: NATI ONAL RI FLE ASSN.

9:36: 52 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOANBSKI announced the next order of business to be SB
2.

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt work draft commttee substitute
(CS) for SB 2( ), |abeled 27-LS0016\1, as the working docunent.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

SENATOR LI NDA MENARD, sponsor of SB 2 stated that she was a
lifetime nenber of the National Rifle Association (NRA). She
noted the proposed conmmttee substitute adds specialty plates
for breast cancer awareness. Mney |left over fromthe NRA plates
after the fees are paid may be appropriated for youth shooting
prograns. Laws |like these are of interest to her constituency.
They may not be weighty issues, but to sonme they nean a |ot.
There is no fiscal note.

M CHAEL ROVITO staff to Senator Linda Menard, added that 26

states have breast cancer awareness plates. Currently about 8
states have NRA plates, and others are considering them

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2011



CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked about the price of the plates.

SENATOR MENARD sai d she thought $50 was a reasonable anount to
charge for NRA plates because the excess funds go to youth
safety prograns. She noted that Senator Huggins was also a co-
sponsor, along with Senators Meyer and G essel.

MS. BREWSTER sai d she was avail abl e for questions.

9:40:11 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if she could speak about how the DW
adm ni sters these requests when there are excess funds going to
speci fic prograns.

VWH TNEY  BREWSTER, Director, Division of Mot or  Vehi cl es,
Department of Admi nistration, said specialty license plates that
are fund raisers are accounted for separately for appropriation
by the legislature. Dealing with plates having excess funds
costs the DW about $10 for each set, plus shipping charges.
These funds go into the general fund.

NEI L MOSS, Alaska State Director, Scholastic Cay Target Program
(SCTP), said that Al aska has nore NRA nenbers per capita than
any other state in the union. Youth shooting sports are always
| ooking for funds for targets, shells, firearns, and safety
literature. SB 2 would provide funds for these prograns

9:42:52 AM
SENATOR KOCKESH j oi ned t he neeti ng.

MR. MOSS further noted that SB 2 would be a great fund raiser. A
simlar program has been very successful in Tennessee. SCIP is a
501 (c)(3) nonprofit corporation, and the funds collected would
be avail able to any youth shooting organi zation in the state.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI cl osed public testinony on SB 2.
9: 45: 36 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMNBKI asked if excess funds from the breast cancer

awar eness plates would go into the general fund.

SENATOR MEYER responded she believed they would go into the
general fund.

CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI said SB 2 would be held in commttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 22, 2011



SB 16- SPECI AL REQUEST LI CENSE PLATES

9:46: 48 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI announced the next order of busi ness would be
SB 16.

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt proposed committee substitute
CSSB 16 ( ), labeled 27-LS0120\D, as the working docunent.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI obj ected for discussion purposes.

M CHELLE SYDEMAN, staff to Senator Bill Welechowski, said there
is only one change in the proposed CS from the original bill,
which is the inclusion of a pro-famly, pro-choice license
plate. On page 2 an addition to the bill establishes where those
excess funds woul d go.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER, sponsor of SB 16, said his conments would
be geared to the original bill and not the CS. The nessage of SB
16 is Choose Life. There are lots of specialty l|license plate
bills, but this one is taking a different approach. This is not
a fund raiser; the funds collected are only to cover costs. He
noted that 26 other states have Choose Life license plates. His
constituents want this, and he personally likes the idea. It is
a pro adoption nessage and a strong pro life nessage, but also a
nmessage about suicide prevention. Choose Life can nean whatever
you want it to nean.

9:51:28 AM

JEFF M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anmerican Cvil Liberties Union
(ACLU) of Alaska, said that specialty license plates raise free
speech issues. SB 93 covers the issue nore generally, because it
allows any organization to submt a nessage. The CS addresses a
concern with SB 16 as originally offered. The process needs to
be neutral.

RUSS AMERLING  National Publicity Coordinator, Choose Life
License Plates, said there are 26 states that have Choose Life
plates. The license plate in all other states is a fundraiser.
The nessage is a nessage of |ife, choose adoption.

JIM M NNERY, Al aska Fam |y Council, said he wanted to enphasize
the option of celebrating adoption. SB 16 has the full support
of the Alaska Fam |y Council.

9:55:17 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 22, 2011



M KE PAULSEN, Chai r man, Choose Life Al aska, said he was
avai |l abl e for questions.

KELLY FOREMAN, Choose Life Alaska, said this issue has been
di scussed by their organization for two years. The Choose Life
pl ate has already been designed to DW specifications. She said
the additional plate added by the CS should be required to go
through its own | egislative process.

BOB HEAD, Director, Anerican Fam |y Association of Al aska,
Juneau, said he has raised an adopted son. He feels that Choose
Life is an extrenely inportant nessage.

SYD HI EDERSDORF, Juneau, testified on his own behalf in support
of SB 16. He said the Choose Life nessage pronotes the culture
of life. Opposition to this nessage is a result of the abortion
mentality in this country. H's testinony is based on the
specific issue of Choose Life, not the CS which includes a
Pl anned Parenthood type anendnent. He hopes the committee wll
support the idea of Choose Life.

10: 00: 50 AM

CAREN ROBI NSON, | obbyist, representing Al aska Wnen's' Lobby and
Al aska Pl anned Parenthood of the Geater Northwest, testified in
support of the proposed CS. She said the organizations she
represents are in support of anything that hel ps people to make
good choices. She also raised the possibility of additional
dollars going to the Alaska Children's Trust from these
specialty plates. The trust already has license plates so the
fundi ng process mght already be in place at DW.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI cl osed public testinmony [and held SB 16 in
conmmi ttee].

10: 02: 00 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Wel echowski adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting at 10:02 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 22, 2011



